
 

 
Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact: Director of Community Planning and Development 
Timothy R. Schmitt, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI 48864 or 517.853.4506 - Ten Day Notice is Required.  
Meeting Location: 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI 48864 
 
 

AGENDA 
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN  

PLANNING COMMISSION – REGULAR MEETING 
June 13, 2022 7PM 

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 
2. ROLL CALL 
3. PUBLIC REMARKS 
4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  

A. May 23, 2022 Regular Meeting 
 

6. COMMUNICATIONS 

A. Email from Mr. and Mrs. Keerthi RE: PUD 22-014 
 

7. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

A. Planned Unit Development #22-014 – 3560 Hulett Road 
B. Text Amendment 2022-11 – Municipal Signage 
C. Text Amendment 2022-12 – Refuse/Storage Container Regulations 

 
8. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

A. None 
 

9. OTHER BUSINESS 

A. Special Use Permit #22-061 – Meridian Township Changing Message Signs 
B. Planning Commission By-laws – Discussion 

 
10. REPORTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 

A. Township Board update. 
B. Liaison reports. 

 
11. PROJECT UPDATES 

A. New Applications 
a. SUP #22-071 – Butterflies Group Daycare 

B. Site Plans Received   
a. SPR #22-04 – Commons Church Parking Lot Expansion 
b. SPR #22-07 – Presbyterian Church Solar Panels 

C. Site Plans Approved  
a. SPR #22-05 – Bharatiya Temple Parking Lights 

 
12. PUBLIC REMARKS 

 
13. ADJOURNMENT  



AGENDA page 2 
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN  
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

June 13, 2022 7PM 

 
Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact: Director of Community Planning and Development 
Timothy R. Schmitt, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI 48864 or 517.853.4506 - Ten Day Notice is Required.  
Meeting Location: 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI 48864 
 
Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

TENTATIVE PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA 
June 27, 2022 

  
1. PUBLIC HEARINGS  

A. None 
 

2. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

A. Planned Unit Development #22-014 – 3560 Hulett Road 
B. Text Amendment 2022-11 – Municipal Signage 
C. Text Amendment 2022-12 – Refuse/Storage Container Regulations 

 
3. OTHER BUSINESS 

 
A. None 
 

 
   



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 
PLANNING COMMISSION  
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
 
May 23, 2022 
5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI 48864-1198 
853-4000, Town Hall Room, 7:00 P.M. 

 
 

PRESENT: Chair Blumer, Vice-Chair Trezise, Commissioners McConnell, Premoe, Richards, 
Shrewsbury, Snyder 

 
ABSENT: Commissioner Cordill 
 
STAFF:  Director of Community Planning & Development Timothy Schmitt, Senior 

Planner Brian Shorkey, Multimedia Producer Samantha Diehl 
 
1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 
 
Chair Blumer called the regular meeting to order at 7:03 pm.  
 
2. ROLL CALL 
 
Chair Blumer called the roll of the Planning Commission, all are present except Commissioner Cordill. 
 
3.  PUBLIC REMARKS 
 
Chair Blumer opened public remarks at 7:03 pm. 
 
NONE 
 
Chair Blumer closed public remarks at 7:03 pm. 

 
4.  APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Vice-Chair Trezise moved to approve the agenda.  
Seconded by Commissioner Richards. 
 
VOICE VOTE:  Motion approved unanimously. 
 
5.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

A. May 9, 2022 Regular Meeting 
 

Vice-Chair Trezise moved to approve the Minutes of the May 9th, 2022 Planning Commission 
Regular Meeting. Seconded by Commissioner Shrewsbury. 
 
 Commissioner McConnell noted under item 8.E Bath Township Master Plan – Discussion, 

“Commissioner McConnell stated if the Planning Commission has plans to write a letter to 
Bath Township they should complement the wetland Ordinance to protect priority wetlands” 
should add after, “especially in the context of climate change.” 

DRAFT 



Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes -DRAFT- 
Page 2 

 
 
VOICE VOTE:  Motion approved unanimously. 
 
6. COMMUNICATIONS 
 

A. Bath Township Master Plan Response Letter 
  
7. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

A. Special Use Permit #22-061 – Meridian Township Changing Message Signs 
 
Chair Blumer opened the Public Hearing at 7:06 pm. 
 
Director Schmitt outlined Meridian Township Changing Message Signs for Public Hearing. 
 
Chair Blumer asked if these would be flashing messages. 
 
Director Schmitt replied they would not. 
 
Commissioner McConnell asked if there would be emergency messaging on the board. 
 
Director Schmitt replied it’s possible. 
 
Commissioner McConnell asked if there is an existing changing message sign to look at to 
get a rough idea of this sign. 
 
Director Schmitt replied Culvers, Walgreens and the Okemos High School have changing 
message signs. 
 
Chair Blumer asked why there is a limit on the amount of times the signs can be changed 
during the day. 
 
Director Schmitt it’s at the Planning Commissions discretion to make that decision and staff 
is being consistent with previous changing message signs that have been recommended for 
approval in the township. 
 
Vice-Chair Trezise noted if the Planning Commission excludes all township signs from 
Zoning Laws then this won’t be necessary.  
 
Director Schmitt stated even with that the special land use will still be in place for the sign, 
so the conditions will still be in place unless the sign is substantially modified. 
 
Commissioner Snyder asked what the township is trying to communicate if the sign is only 
changing twice a day. 
 
Director Schmitt replied the sign is mostly for special events and special messages. 
 
Commissioner Snyder asked why limit the sign to only two changes a day. 
 



Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes -DRAFT- 
Page 3 

 
Director Schmitt replied staff was only trying to be as conservative as possible with the sign 
when brought to the Planning Commission. 
 
Commissioner Premoe stated changing the sign multiple times during the day will distract 
drivers. 
 
Vice-Chair Trezise stated changing the sign two times a day is reasonable and consistent 
with Zoning Laws, however if it is to be used for different purposes the Special Use Permit 
could be amended. 
 
Commissioner Premoe noted it should be included that the sign could be changed more 
than twice a day in case of emergency. 
 
Commissioner McConnell noted the fifth whereas should be reworded so that it’s 
understood the sign’s installation is contingent on the township’s sign Ordinance being 
updated. 
 
Chair Blumer called for a straw vote on whether the Planning Commission would approve 
the sign subject to minor revisions by staff. 
 

STRAW VOTE: YEAS: Commissioners Snyder, Shrewsbury, Richards, Vice-Chair Trezise, 
_________Commissioners McConnell, Premoe, Chair Blumer 

 
NAYS: None 
 
Motion carried: 7-0 

 
  Chair Blumer closed the Public Hearing at 7:22 pm. 
 
8. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  
 

A. Mixed-Use Planned Unit Development #22014 – 1621 & 1625 Haslett Road – Haslett Village 
 
Senior Planner Shorkey outlined Mixed-Use Planned Unit Development #22014 – 1621 & 
1625 Haslett Road, Haslett Village for discussion. 
 
Vice-Chair Trezise noted there may be too few parking spaces now, but he doesn’t see any 
room for extra parking at this time. 
 
Chair Blumer echoed the concern of too few parking spaces as these will be rental units 
meaning it will likely attract a younger, more mobile population. 
 
Applicant’s representative, Mike Corby of Integrated Architecture stated the applicant plans 
for 1.5 parking spaces per unit and feels very comfortable with this number as they have used 
this number in the past.  
 
Commissioner Richards asked if there is a plan in case more parking was required. 
 



Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes -DRAFT- 
Page 4 

 
Mr. Corby stated there isn’t any land set aside for additional parking, however parallel 
parking could be changed to angled parking to increase parking density however he doesn’t 
believe it will be necessary.  
 
Vice-Chair Trezise asked when Commercial Building H1 is planned for building as it’s not 
listed in the schedule.  
 
Mr. Corby stated building H1 will be marketed immediately, and hopes it’s part of the initial 
building phase. 
 
Vice-Chair Trezise stated H1 is a significant part of the mixed use of this project and would 
like to see it in the construction plans. 
 
Mr. Corby stated it could be included in plans, no later than the last phase. 
 
Commissioner Snyder asked if previous development that have used 1.5 parking spaces per 
unit were mixed-use or primarily residential. 
 
Mr. Corby replied they have been primarily residential. 
 
Commissioner Snyder asked if potential food truck staging area parking spaces are included 
in the parking count. 
 
Mr. Corby replied they are. 
 
Commissioner McConnell asked about connecting the side walk on the west side at the Pine 
Village corner. 
 
Mr. Corby stated they are fine with making the connection and making a cross walk. 
 
Commissioner McConnell asked about the west most inner urban connection may need a 
different shape so it’s not so steep. 
 
Mr. Corby replied there is some berming that will be taken down with a small inlet though 
the berming.   
 
Commissioner McConnell asked about the trailhead restrooms area. 
 
Mr. Corby replied there will be drinking fountains, restrooms, a bike kiosk for bicycle 
maintenance, benches and a fenced in dog park, all of which will be available to the general 
public. 
 
Chair Blumer asked if there has been a demographic projection.  
 
Applicant Representative, Chad Koster, 940 Floral Ave., Grand Rapids, MI stated there has 
been a market study and one of the reasons the project was taken down to 290 is because 
they want more two bedroom units. They project residents who are younger professionals 
and older people who are looking for an easier way of life. 
 



Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes -DRAFT- 
Page 5 

 
Commissioner Richards noted the plans show less than one parking lot per bedroom, and 
would like to see a comparable project to be sure planned parking will be sufficient. 
 
Commissioner Premoe noted the applicant has stated a contingency plan for parking if it’s 
not sufficient. 
 
Commissioner Richards stated he would like to see how many parking spaces could be added 
if the current number isn’t enough. 
 
Mr. Corby stated he could show how many parking spaced could be added. 
 
Commissioner McConnell stated the development is 8 minutes from the Meridian mall by 
CATA bus, and 24 minutes to MSU campus. He further stated CATA operates a shopping bus 
that circulates shopping centers. 
 
Chair Blumer asked what the drive through is for. 
 
Mr. Corby stated the one on the corner could be a pharmacy but wasn’t certain, while the 
other is planned for a coffee shop. 
 
Commissioner Snyder asked where the playground will be located. 
 
Mr. Corby replied the playground is likely to be close to building I. 
 

Vice Chair Trezise moved to approve Mixed-Use Planned Unit Development #22014. Seconded 
by Commissioner Premoe. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS: Commissioners McConnell, Premoe, Shrewsbury, Vice-Chair Trezise, 

_________Commissioner Snyder, Chair Blumer 
 

NAYS: Commissioner Richards 
 
Motion carried: 6-1 

 
B. Text Amendment 2022-10 – PUD Decks 

 
Director Schmitt outlined Text Amendment 2022 -10 –PUD Decks for discussion. 
 

Commissioner Trezise moved to approve Text Amendment 2022-10 – PUD Decks. Seconded 
by Commissioner Snyder. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS: Commissioners Richards, Shrewsbury, Premoe, McConnell, Snyder, 

_________Vice-Chair Trezise, Chair Blumer 
 

NAYS: Commissioner  
 
Motion carried: 7-0 

 
 

9. OTHER BUSINESS - NONE 



Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes -DRAFT- 
Page 6 

 
 
10. REPORTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

A. Township Board update 
 
Director Schmitt reported the Township Board has adopted the series of text amendments the 
Planning Commission has worked on in the beginning of the year. The Township board has also 
had the initial review of the Bickford House addition, and it has approved $1.25 million dollars 
for the infrastructure costs as it relates to the village of Okemos project and is considering the 
adoption of a Commercial Rehabilitation District for the support of the Haslett Village Project.  
 

B. Liaison reports - NONE 
 
11. PROJECT UPDATES 

 
A. New Applications  

  
a. 3560 Hulett Road – Planned Unit Development  
 

B. Site Plans Received  
 

a. 4720 Marsh Road – Parking Lot Expansion 
 

C. Site Plans Approved   
 
NONE 
 

12. PUBLIC REMARKS  
 
Chair Blumer opened Public Remarks at 8:06 PM. 
 
NONE 
 
Chair Blumer closed Public Remarks at 8:06 PM. 
 
13. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Commissioner Premoe moved to Adjourn. Seconded by Chair Blumer. 
 
VOICE VOTE:  Motion approved unanimously. 
 
Chair Blumer adjourned the regular meeting at 8:07 pm. 
 



1

Keith Chapman

From: shiva <shivaparupalli@gmail.com>
Sent: Thursday, June 9, 2022 11:40 AM
To: Keith Chapman; Planning Commision (DG); keerthi17 cherukuri
Subject: Conditional support to PUD #22-014(3560 Hulett)

Hello Keith, 
 
Thank you for sharing the plan information. 
 
Privacy Concerns: 
Privacy is the main concern for me.I live at 2746 coreopsis ct, Okemos, MI-48864 in Meadows, next to PUD 
#22-014.While I was buying my house in 2019, I gave a lot of thought to the privacy of my property.At the time 
I was not informed of any plans for development or rezoning of the said property.Doing so,will result in a loss of 
privacy,impact on the environment and ultimately diminish the value of my property and also my lot shares 
maximum portion with the upcoming new (PUD #22-014) community.Any such construction will DIRECTLY 
JEOPARDIZE the Privacy and the FUTURE VALUE/WORTH of our property. If the construction happens, I will 
have to deal with any disputes outside of my HOA.I'm requesting Meridian Township to Strictly Enforce the 
Standard Guidelines for this Upcoming Construction to avoid future disputes between the communities. 
 
Construction Concerns: 
In order to start construction, I would like to know about construction hours and guidelines regarding dust and 
debris control on my property, since I have toddlers at home and I am concerned about their safety. 
 
Please keep me posted on the hearing's outcome. 
 
Sincerely, 
Siva Parupalli & Keerthi 
248-633-5489 
517-515-9693 
 
 
On Tue, Jun 7, 2022 at 8:23 AM Keith Chapman <chapman@meridian.mi.us> wrote: 

Hi Siva, 

  

Attached is the proposed plan. The meeting will begin at 7 pm. You can also write an email expressing any concerns and 
I can forward it on to the Commission members. 

  

Sincerely, 

  

Keith Chapman 

  



2

From: shiva <shivaparupalli@gmail.com>  
Sent: Monday, June 6, 2022 1:19 PM 
To: Keith Chapman <chapman@meridian.mi.us> 
Cc: keerthi17 cherukuri <keerthi.1217@gmail.com> 
Subject: Regards PUD #22‐014(3560 Hulett) 

  

Hello Keith, 

 
My name is Siva Parupalli, and I live at 2746 coreopsis ct, Okemos, MI-48864, next to PUD #22-014. Today I 
received a notice from Meridian Township on the new development. I'm interested in learning more about the 
development plan and have some concerns as a result. How can I find out more about this development?. I 
would appreciate any further information. I'm not sure if I can attend the in-person public hearing. If I were to 
attend, what is the time since it didn't say on the notice. 

  

Thank You! 

Siva Parupalli 

248‐633‐5489 

 
 
 
‐‐  
shiva 



 

 

To:  Planning Commission  
 
From:  Brian Shorkey, AICP, Senior Planner 
 
Date:  June 9, 2022 
 
Re: Planned Unit Development #22-014 (3560 Hulett), develop PUD consisting of 

6 single family residential lots on approximately 5 acres located on Hulett 
Road, north of Jolly Road. 

 
 
Giguerre Homes has submitted a planned unit development (PUD) proposal at the property at 3560 
Hulett Road. The PUD proposal includes the construction of 6 detached single-family homes on 
approximately 5 acres located on Hulett Road. Access to the 6 properties is from a proposed cul-de-
sac. A water feature, called Paxton Pond, is included in the permanently preserved open space.   
 
The intent of the PUD ordinance is to permit greater flexibility and more creative design of 
residential developments than is possible under conventional zoning regulations. A minimum of 
50% of the project area, excluding wetlands and floodplains, must be preserved as open space. 
 
Zoning 
The subject property is located in the RA (Single Family-Medium Density) zoning district. A PUD is 
allowed in any residential zoning district on any sized property. Detached single family homes are 
proposed. The properties to the north, east, and south are also zoned RA while the property to the 
west, Okemos High School, is zoned Rural Residential. 
 
Master Plan 
The property is designated on the Future Land Use Map from the 2017 Master Plan as R-2 Residential, 
0.5-3.5 dwelling units per acre (du/a). The density of the proposed development is 1.20 du/a and falls 
within the R-2 Master Plan designation. The same future land use designation applied to the properties 
to the north, east, and south. The property to the west is Okemos High School and is designated as 
Institutional. 
 
Physical Features 
The site contains the historical farmhouse and associated out buildings, as well as Paxton Pond. The 
Township GIS data shows the presence of a wetland on the property, associated with the pond. The 
wetland is 1.04 acres in size and was delineated in April 2022. The entire wetland lies within the 
protected open space and all development is outside of the required 40-foot setback. The Flood 
Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) for Meridian Township indicates there are no floodplains on the property.   
 
Streets and Traffic 
The subject site is located on the east side of Hulett Road. Hulett Road is a two-lane road designated 
as a Collector Street on the Street Setbacks and Service Drives Map in the zoning ordinance. The 
2017 Master Plan shows a proposed seven-foot pathway and paved shoulders on Hulett Road. The 
applicant will be required to construct sidewalks on the proposed cul-de-sac on the subject property 
if the PUD is approved. Those sidewalks will be required to connect to the Hulett Road pathway.  



 
Planned Unit Development #22014 (3560 Hulett) 
Planning Commission (June 13, 2022) 
Page 2 

 

  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

 

Utilities 
Municipal water is available in the vicinity of the subject site. Municipal sewer is located across Hulett 
Road and would have to be extended to serve the proposed development. The location and capacity of 
utilities for any proposed development will be reviewed in detail by the Department of Public Works 
and Engineering during the Site Plan Review process. 
 
Planned Unit Development Standards 
Planning Staff is providing the minimum PUD performance objectives for planned unit developments 
for the Planning Commission’s review, as found in Sec. 86-439 in the zoning ordinance. Staff will 
provide a more thorough review at a future meeting. 
 

1. All applications shall provide for buffering between any conflicting feature of the design and 
adjacent residential land use. 

2. All applications shall ensure good internal and external pedestrian accessibility with a 
minimum of conflicting points with the vehicular circulation system.  

3. All applications shall minimize the cost of street construction and associated maintenance 
costs while adhering to official Township construction standards. 

4. All applications shall consider convenient access to public transportation. 
5. All applications shall minimize the cost of utility construction and associated maintenance 

costs while adhering to construction standards. 
6. All applications shall take advantage of natural vegetation and topographic characteristics 

to promote natural air conditioning and enhancement of air quality.  
7. All applications should enhance and preserve wildlife habitat, with special attention to 

wetlands and other unique habitats.  
8. Except in unusual circumstances, stormwater runoff induced by the proposed development 

shall be detained for storage and infiltration on the site. 
9. All applications shall provide for active and/or passive recreation on the site in harmony 

with the character of the open space. 
10. A minimum of 50% of the project area allowed for density determination, excluding 

wetlands and floodplains, shall be provided as open space. Deliberate efforts must be made 
to preserve important landscape features and amenities of long term value and use these 
features as key components of design.  

11. All applications shall contain a housing type or types sufficient in number to maintain a 
harmonious relationship with important site features, structures and adjacent land uses and 
represent quality in design.  

12. All applications shall demonstrate that there is adequate capacity of public streets, sewer 
and water facilities to serve the development.  

 
Planning Commission Options 
The Planning Commission may recommend approval as written, recommend approval of a revised 
version, or recommend denial of the proposed zoning amendment. Staff will provide a resolution at 
a future meeting after collecting the Planning Commission and the public comments and fully 
reviewing the application. 
 
 



 
Planned Unit Development #22014 (3560 Hulett) 
Planning Commission (June 13, 2022) 
Page 3 

 

  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

 

Attachments 
1. Application and attachments. 
2. Site plan prepared by Enger Engineering, dated June 6, 2022 and received by the Township June 

6, 2022. 





































 

 
Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

To:  Members of the Planning Commission 
 
From:  Timothy R. Schmitt, AICP, Community Planning and Development Director 
 
Date:  June 8, 2022 
 
Re: Text Amendment 2022-11 – Municipal Signage 
 
At the April 25th, 2022 Planning Commission meeting, Staff introduced a proposed ordinance change 
to exempt municipal signage from the ordinance requirements in the underlying zoning district 
where the municipal property is located. This was an item that was being recommended as part of 
the overall sign ordinance update. However, with the Township sign refresh project moving forward 
rapidly, Staff is bringing this change forward separately from the overall sign ordinance update, as 
a stand-alone ordinance.  
 
The subcommittee reviewing the sign ordinance had no concern with this proposed change when 
presented as part of the overall sign ordinance update. We believe moving this forward more rapidly 
will aid the Township in completing the overall sign refresh project in a timely fashion. Staff would 
recommend approval of the proposed change as outlined in the attached ordinance.  
 
After the public hearing on this matter, the Planning Commission will be asked to make a 
recommendation to the Township Board on the proposed ordinance. The Township Board will take 
final action on the ordinance after this recommendation is received. A draft resolution for this 
recommendation is attached.  
 
 
Attachments 
1. Draft Resolution recommending approval to the Township Board 
2. Clean version of Ordinance 2022-11 – Municipal Signage 
3. Redlined version of Ordinance 2022-11 – Municipal Signage 
 



RESOLUTION TO RECOMMEND APPROVAL              Zoning Amendment #2022-11 
Municipal Signage 

  
RESOLUTION 

 
At the regular meeting of the Planning Commission of the Charter Township of Meridian, 

Ingham County, Michigan, held at the Meridian Municipal Building, in said Township on the 13th day 
of June, 2022 at 7:00 p.m., Local Time. 
 
PRESENT: ___________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
ABSENT: ___________________________________________________________________________________________________   

 
 The following resolution was offered by _________________ and supported by ___________________. 
 

WHEREAS, the current zoning ordinance contains substantial limitations on Township 
sponsored signage, including entryway signs into the community; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Township is working towards a major overhaul of municipal signage 

throughout the community, with the new Township brand standards; and 
 

WHEREAS, municipal signage serves a different purpose than traditional commercial or 
advertising signage, acting as large scale wayfinding and messaging for important public health and 
safety functions; and 
 

WHEREAS, removing the standards for municipal signage will allow the Township to 
refresh signage, while having signs that are still an appropriate size for the overall Township. 
 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CHARTER 
TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN hereby recommends approval of Zoning Amendment #2022-11, to 
exempt municipal signage from the sign ordinance.  
 
ADOPTED: YEAS: ________________________________________________________________________________  
 
  NAYS: ________________________________________________________________________________                           
 
STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
    ) ss 
COUNTY OF INGHAM ) 
 

I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Chair of the Planning Commission of the 
Charter Township of Meridian, Ingham County, Michigan, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is 
a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted at a regular meeting of the Planning Commission 
on the 13th day of June, 2022. 
 
 

       _____________________________  
       Mark Blumer 
       Planning Commission Chair 



1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-11 1 
 2 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF 3 
MERIDIAN TO EXEMPT TOWNSHIP SIGNAGE FROM THE SIGN ORDINANCE 4 

 5 
THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN ORDAINS: 6 
 7 
Section 1. Section 86-696 is hereby renamed Township Signage, is hereby amended to read as 8 

follows: 9 
 10 

The provisions of this Article shall not apply to any sign installed by the Charter Township of 11 
Meridian on premises owned, occupied, or under the control or management of the Charter 12 
Township of Meridian.  13 

 14 
Section 2. Validity and Severability.  The provisions of this Ordinance are severable and the 15 

invalidity of any phrase, clause or part of this Ordinance shall not affect the validity 16 
or effectiveness of the remainder of the Ordinance. 17 

 18 
Section 3. Repealer Clause.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict therewith are 19 

hereby repealed only to the extent necessary to give this Ordinance full force and 20 
effect. 21 

 22 
Section 4.  Savings Clause.  This Ordinance does not affect rights and duties matured, penalties 23 

that were incurred, and proceedings that were begun, before its effective date. 24 
 25 
Section 5.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be effective seven (7) days after its publication 26 

or upon such later date as may be required under Section 402 of the Michigan Zoning 27 
Enabling Act (MCL 125.3402) after filing of a notice of intent to file a petition for a 28 
referendum. 29 

 30 
ADOPTED by the Charter Township of Meridian Board at its regular meeting this XXth day of 31 
XXXXXXX, 2022.  32 
 33 
 34 

______________________________ 35 
Patricia Herring Jackson, Township Supervisor 36 

 37 
 38 
 39 

______________________________ 40 
Deborah Guthrie, Township Clerk 41 



1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-11 1 
 2 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF 3 
MERIDIAN TO EXEMPT TOWNSHIP SIGNAGE FROM THE SIGN ORDINANCE 4 

 5 
THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN ORDAINS: 6 
 7 
Section 1. Section 86-696 is hereby renamed Township Signage, is hereby amended to read as 8 

follows: 9 
 10 

Township-sponsored signage shall be permitted subject to the following regulations: 11 
 12 

(1) Community entrance signs caused to be installed by the Township are permitted in all zoning 13 
districts. Such signs shall be no larger than 25 square feet in surface display area on each side. 14 

(2) Signs announcing, identifying or directing the public to Township-owned or operated public 15 
facilities or parks shall be allowed in all zoning districts. Such signs shall be no larger than 25 16 
square feet in surface display area on each side nor exceed 20 feet in height and may be 17 
located at each entrance to the public facility or park or at other locations as determined 18 
necessary to direct the public to Township facilities, parks, or services, provided that any sign 19 
shall be placed at least 10 feet back of the street right-of-way line. 20 

(3) Vertical banners affixed to streetlight poles used for purposes such as, but not limited to, 21 
advertising upcoming Township-sponsored events, identifying a business district, or a 22 
seasonal display shall be allowed in all zoning districts. 23 
 24 

The provisions of this Article shall not apply to any sign installed by the Charter Township of 25 
Meridian on premises owned, occupied, or under the control or management of the Charter 26 
Township of Meridian.  27 

 28 
Section 2. Validity and Severability.  The provisions of this Ordinance are severable and the 29 

invalidity of any phrase, clause or part of this Ordinance shall not affect the validity 30 
or effectiveness of the remainder of the Ordinance. 31 

 32 
Section 3. Repealer Clause.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict therewith are 33 

hereby repealed only to the extent necessary to give this Ordinance full force and 34 
effect. 35 

 36 
Section 4.  Savings Clause.  This Ordinance does not affect rights and duties matured, penalties 37 

that were incurred, and proceedings that were begun, before its effective date. 38 
 39 
Section 5.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be effective seven (7) days after its publication 40 

or upon such later date as may be required under Section 402 of the Michigan Zoning 41 
Enabling Act (MCL 125.3402) after filing of a notice of intent to file a petition for a 42 
referendum. 43 

 44 
ADOPTED by the Charter Township of Meridian Board at its regular meeting this XXth day of 45 
XXXXXXX, 2022.  46 

______________________________ 47 
Patricia Herring Jackson, Township Supervisor 48 

______________________________ 49 
Deborah Guthrie, Township Clerk 50 



 

 

To:  Members of the Planning Commission  
 
From:  Brian Shorkey, AICP, Senior Planner 
 
Date:  June 9, 2022 
 
Re: Text Amendment – Temporary Container Unit Regulations 
 
 
Planning Staff has received several concerns about storage containers around the township. Some 
of these containers are anecdotally known as PODS. This has prompted Staff to research this issue 
and create language to regulate temporary container units. 
 
Planning Staff introduced a draft ordinance update to the Planning Commission at their April 11th 
meeting and discussed it again at their May 9th meeting.  
 
The draft ordinance defines temporary container units and Portable On-Site Deliverable Storage 
Units (PODS) by adding two new definitions to Sec. 86-2 – Definitions. It also creates language in 
Sec. 86-476 to regulate the temporary container units and PODS in the Township. A redline and 
clean versions of the draft ordinance are attached.  
 
Planning Commission Options 
 
The Planning Commission may recommend approval as written, recommend approval of a revised 
version, or recommend denial of the proposed zoning amendment. A resolution to recommend 
approval of the proposed zoning amendment is provided. 
 
Motion to adopt the resolution recommending approval of Zoning Amendment 2022-12 in 
accordance with the revised draft ordinance language dated June 13, 2022. 
 
Attachments 
1. Resolution to recommend approval of Ordinance 2022-12 
2. Draft temporary container unit ordinance – redlined. 
3. Draft temporary container unit ordinance – clean. 
 



 

 

RESOLUTION TO RECOMMEND APPROVAL              Zoning Amendment #2022-12 
POD & Container Regulation 

  
RESOLUTION 

 
At the regular meeting of the Planning Commission of the Charter Township of Meridian, 

Ingham County, Michigan, held at the Meridian Municipal Building, in said Township on the 13th 
day of June, 2022 at 7:00 p.m., Local Time. 
 
PRESENT: ___________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
ABSENT: ___________________________________________________________________________________________________   

 
 The following resolution was offered by _________________ and supported by ___________________. 
 

WHEREAS, Planning Staff has received questions from the public about the legality of 
Portable On-Site Deliverable Storage Units (PODS); and  

 
WHEREAS, PODS are not regulated nor defined in the zoning ordinance; and 

 
WHEREAS, refuse containers are also not regulated nor defined in the zoning ordinance; 

and 
 

WHEREAS, the regulation of PODS and refuse containers will help to beautify the township. 
 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CHARTER 
TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN hereby recommends approval of Zoning Amendment #2022-12, to add 
two new definitions to Sec. 86-2 – Definitions and to regulate PODS and containers in the township.  
 
ADOPTED: YEAS: ________________________________________________________________________________  
 
  NAYS: ________________________________________________________________________________                           
 
STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
    ) ss 
COUNTY OF INGHAM ) 
 

I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Chair of the Planning Commission of the 
Charter Township of Meridian, Ingham County, Michigan, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is 
a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted at a regular meeting of the Planning Commission 
on the 13th day of June, 2022. 
 
 

       _____________________________  
       Mark Blumer 
       Planning Commission Chair 



1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-XX 1 
 2 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF 3 
MERIDIAN TO REGULATE STORAGE PODS IN THE ZONING ORDINANCE 4 

 5 
THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN ORDAINS: 6 
 7 
Section 1. Sec. 86-2, Definitions, is hereby amended to add the following definitions: 8 
 9 

Portable On-Site Deliverable Storage Units – Also known as PODS. A container, 10 
transportable or portable structure or unit designed and used primarily for storage of 11 
building materials, household goods, personal items and other materials outside an 12 
enclosed building, other than an accessory building or shed. 13 
 14 
Temporary container unit – A portable and transportable structure designed and used for 15 
storage or disposal of building materials, household goods, personal items, or other 16 
materials outside an enclosed building, other than an accessory building. 17 

 18 
Section 2. Sec. 86-476, is hereby amended to read as follows: 19 
 20 

(a) Purpose – The purpose of this section is to regulate the use of temporary container units and 21 
PODS in the township. 22 

(b) No temporary container units or PODS are permitted without written approval of the 23 
Community Development Director. In any case, all temporary container units and PODS are 24 
required to comply with this ordinance. 25 

(c) Temporary container units and PODS are permitted to be on a property for a period of not to 26 
exceed 30 days. The use of such units shall be limited to no more than twice during any 27 
twelve-month period,. except that a 28 

(c)(d) A temporary container unit or POD used in conjunction with a permitted home 29 
improvement or construction project are permitted for the duration of an active building 30 
permit. 31 

(d)(e) No more than two temporary container units or PODS shall be permitted on a 32 
property at any time. 33 

(e)(f) Any temporary container unit A POD in the front yard must be placed on a driveway 34 
or other hard surfaced area. The Community Development Director may waive this 35 
requirement. 36 

(g) A temporary container unit may be placed anywhere in the front yard outside of a road right-37 
of-way with the approval of the Community Development Director. 38 

(f)(h) A temporary container unit or POD may not be placed in a road right-of-way without 39 
written permission from the Ingham County Road Department. 40 

(g)(i) Any temporary container unit or POD in the side or rear yard must comply with the 41 
accessory building setbacks as regulated in Sec. 86-565. 42 

 43 
Section 3. Validity and Severability. The provisions of this Ordinance are severable and the 44 

invalidity of any phrase, clause or part of this Ordinance shall not affect the validity 45 
or effectiveness of the remainder of the Ordinance. 46 



2 
 

 1 
Section 4. Repealer Clause. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict therewith are 2 

hereby repealed only to the extent necessary to give this Ordinance full force and 3 
effect. 4 

 5 
Section 5.  Savings Clause. This Ordinance does not affect rights and duties matured, penalties 6 

that were incurred, and proceedings that were begun, before its effective date. 7 
 8 
Section 6.  Effective Date. This Ordinance shall be effective seven (7) days after its publication or 9 

upon such later date as may be required under Section 402 of the Michigan Zoning 10 
Enabling Act (MCL 125.3402) after filing of a notice of intent to file a petition for a 11 
referendum. 12 

 13 
ADOPTED by the Charter Township of Meridian Board at its regular meeting this XXth day of 14 
XXXXXXX, 2022.  15 
 16 
 17 

______________________________ 18 
Patricia Herring Jackson, Township Supervisor 19 

 20 
 21 

______________________________ 22 
Deborah Guthrie, Township Clerk 23 



1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-XX 1 
 2 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF 3 
MERIDIAN TO REGULATE STORAGE PODS AND TEMPORARY CONTAINER UNITS IN THE ZONING 4 

ORDINANCE 5 
 6 

THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN ORDAINS: 7 
 8 
Section 1. Sec. 86-2, Definitions, is hereby amended to add the following definitions: 9 
 10 

Portable On-Site Deliverable Storage Units – Also known as PODS. A container, 11 
transportable or portable structure or unit designed and used primarily for storage of 12 
building materials, household goods, personal items and other materials outside an 13 
enclosed building, other than an accessory building or shed. 14 
 15 
Temporary container unit – A portable and transportable structure designed and used for 16 
storage or disposal of building materials, household goods, personal items, or other 17 
materials outside an enclosed building, other than an accessory building. 18 

 19 
Section 2. Sec. 86-476, is hereby amended to read as follows: 20 
 21 

(a) Purpose – The purpose of this section is to regulate the use of temporary container units and 22 
PODS in the township. 23 

(b) No temporary container units or PODS are permitted without written approval of the 24 
Community Development Director. In any case, all temporary container units and PODS are 25 
required to comply with this ordinance. 26 

(c) Temporary container units and PODS are permitted to be on a property for a period of not to 27 
exceed 30 days. The use of such units shall be limited to no more than twice during any 28 
twelve-month period.  29 

(d) A temporary container unit or POD used in conjunction with a permitted home improvement 30 
or construction project are permitted for the duration of an active building permit. 31 

(e) No more than two temporary container units or PODS shall be permitted on a property at any 32 
time. 33 

(f) A POD in the front yard must be placed on a driveway or other hard surfaced area. The 34 
Community Planning and Development Director may waive this requirement. 35 

(g) A temporary container unit may be placed anywhere in the front yard outside of a road right-36 
of-way with the approval of the Community Planning and Development Director. 37 

(h) A temporary container unit or POD may not be placed in a road right-of-way without written 38 
permission from the Ingham County Road Department. 39 

(i) Any temporary container unit or POD in the side or rear yard must comply with the accessory 40 
building setbacks as regulated in Sec. 86-565. 41 

 42 
Section 3. Validity and Severability. The provisions of this Ordinance are severable and the 43 

invalidity of any phrase, clause or part of this Ordinance shall not affect the validity 44 
or effectiveness of the remainder of the Ordinance. 45 

 46 



2 
 

Section 4. Repealer Clause. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict therewith are 1 
hereby repealed only to the extent necessary to give this Ordinance full force and 2 
effect. 3 

 4 
Section 5.  Savings Clause. This Ordinance does not affect rights and duties matured, penalties 5 

that were incurred, and proceedings that were begun, before its effective date. 6 
 7 
Section 6.  Effective Date. This Ordinance shall be effective seven (7) days after its publication or 8 

upon such later date as may be required under Section 402 of the Michigan Zoning 9 
Enabling Act (MCL 125.3402) after filing of a notice of intent to file a petition for a 10 
referendum. 11 

 12 
ADOPTED by the Charter Township of Meridian Board at its regular meeting this XXth day of 13 
XXXXXXX, 2022.  14 
 15 
 16 

______________________________ 17 
Patricia Herring Jackson, Township Supervisor 18 

 19 
 20 

______________________________ 21 
Deborah Guthrie, Township Clerk 22 



 

 

 

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

 

To:  Planning Commission  
 
From:  Timothy R. Schmitt, AICP 
  Community Planning and Development Director 
 
Date:  June 8, 2022 
 
Re: Special Use Permit #22-061 – Meridian Township – Install changing message 

signs on Municipal properties 
 
The Planning Commission held the public hearing for Special Use Permit #22-061 at its meeting on 
May 23, 2022. At the meeting the Planning Commission discussed several items, most notably the 
timing on the changing message for the potential signage. Staff has discussed the item internally and 
we agree that there should be some limitation on the change of message, but also agree that there 
should be flexibility to make changes as the Township needs to.  
 
Based on that discussion, we’ve updated the resolution for approval to include language that limits 
the number of messages per day, rather than the timing on such changes. That way, Staff has the 
flexibility to change the message in an appropriate way, while limiting the number of messages. We 
expect that the Marketplace on the Green site will have messages regarding events going on at that 
location, such as the farmer’s market and summer concert series. The Municipal building will have 
messages covering the broader Township, such as Celebrate Meridian, meeting times, tax bills, etc. 
In times where no specific message is being used, we expect that the Township’s logo or other such 
‘on brand’ materials will be displayed.  
 
Planning Commission Options 
 
The Planning Commission may approve, approve with conditions, or deny the special use permit.  
Staff recommends approval of the Special Use Permit to allow changing message signs to be 
installed at the Municipal Building property at 5151 Marsh Road and the Marketplace on the Green 
property at 1995 Central Park Drive, with the conditions listed in the attached resolution.  
 

Move to adopt the resolution approving Special Use Permit #22-061, a request to install 
one changing message sign to be installed at the Municipal Building property at 5151 
Marsh Road and another changing message sign to be installed at the Marketplace on the 
Green property at 1995 Central Park Drive. Both changing message signs shall not exceed 
20 square feet in size.  

 
Attachment 
1. Resolution for approval 
2. Planning Commission packet from May 23, 2022 Meeting 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION TO APPROVE Special Use Permit #22-061 
  Municipal Signage – Changing Message 
  

RESOLUTION 
 

At the regular meeting of the Planning Commission of the Charter Township of Meridian, 
Ingham County, Michigan, held at the Meridian Municipal Building, in said Township on the 13th day 
of June, 2022, at 7:00 p.m., Local Time. 
 
PRESENT: ________________________________________________________________________________________                     
                                                                                                          
ABSENT: ________________________________________________________________________________________                      
 
 The following resolution was offered by __________________ and supported by                                             
_______________________. 
 
 WHEREAS, Township Staff have been working on a sign refresh for the Township’s signage for 
seven years; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Township’s brand standards have changed substantially in the past several 
years; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Township’s sign design consultant has recommended approximately 25% of the 
sign area at the Municipal Building and the Marketplace on the Green be a changing message sign, to 
convey additional information to the general public; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a public hearing for Special Use Permit #22-061 at 
its meeting on May 23, 2022 and has reviewed the staff material forwarded under cover memorandum 
dated May 19, 2022; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the requested amendment is consistent with the general standards for granting a 
special use permit found in Section 86-126 of the Code of Ordinances; and 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CHARTER 
TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN hereby approves Special Use Permit #22-061 subject to the following 
conditions: 
 

1. The changing message portion of the final design of the sign shall not exceed 25% of the 
total sign area.  

 
2. There shall be no more than five messages per day on a sign, with transitions being limited 

to one per minute.  
 

3. The applicant shall obtain any and all other applicable permits, licenses, and approvals 
necessary to install the signs. Copies of all permits, licenses, and approvals shall be 
submitted to the Department of Community Planning and Development. 

 
4. Neither sign shall flash, travel, or move in any way. 
 



Resolution to Approve                 SUP #22-061 – Municipal Changing Message Signs 
Page 2 
 

5. The Special Use Permit shall be void is the Township’s sign ordinance is not updated to 
allow a changing message sign at both locations, prior to installation.  

 
6. Any changes to the signs that modify the changing message portion of the sign shall 

require Planning Commission review and approval, regardless of future ordinance 
changes.  

 
ADOPTED: YEAS: __________________________________________________________________________________                                      
                                                                                             
  NAYS: ________________________________________________________________________________                   
 
STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
    ) ss 
COUNTY OF INGHAM ) 
  
 I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Chairperson of the Planning Commission of 
the Charter Township of Meridian, Ingham County, Michigan, DO HEREBY CERTIFY the foregoing is a 
true and complete copy of a resolution adopted at a regular meeting of the Planning Commission on the 
13th day of June, 2022. 
 
 
       ______________________________   
       Mark Blumer, Chair 
       Meridian Township Planning Commission  
 
 
 



 

To:  Planning Commission 
 
From:  Timothy R. Schmitt, AICP, Community Planning and Development Director 
 
Date:  May 19, 2022 
 
Re: Special Use Permit #22-061 – Meridian Township – Install changing message 

signs on Municipal properties 
 
 
Meridian Township is in the process of refreshing our signs throughout the Township to modernize 
them and match the new brand standards. Part of the proposed refresh are two changing message 
signs, to be located on the Municipal Building property at 5151 Marsh Road and the Marketplace on 
the Green property at 1995 Central Park Drive. Under the current sign ordinance, changing 
message signs require Planning Commission review and approval of a Special Use Permit.  
 
The existing signs, both permanent and temporary, would be removed with the installation of the 
new Township signs. The sign at the Municipal Building is proposed to be approximately 92 square 
feet, with only 20 square feet of that sign constituting a changing message sign. The sign proposed 
for the Marketplace on the Green would be approximately 82 square feet (smaller due to one less 
line of text), with a changing message sign of 20 square feet as well.  
 
Zoning 
 
The Municipal Building 
property is zoned RAAA, 
single-family low 
density, and the 
Marketplace property is 
zoned C-3, Commercial.  
Although there are 
previous approvals for 
both sites, neither is 
related to changing 
message signs, so this 
request is being treated 
as an entirely new 
application. 

 
 

Current Zoning of 
properties-> 

 
 
 
  



 
SUP #22-061 – Meridian Township Signage          Planning Commission – May 23, 2022 
Page 2 

 
  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

 

Physical Features 
 
The location of both signs is in an already developed potion of the overall property. The 
Marketplace on the Green sign will be located just to the north of the existing pavilion, along the 
public sidewalk, between the two small stormwater management areas. The sign at the Municipal 
Building will be located just to the south of the entrance to the complex off of Marsh Road, near the 
Police Department building. No natural features will be harmed as a result of this installation.  
 
Staff Analysis 
 
Special use permit review is limited to the changing message portion of the sign, rather than the 
overall sign, which is subject to the requirements of the Zoning Ordinance, and if necessary, Zoning 
Board of Appeals review. The special use permit review criteria found in Section 86-126 of the Code 
of Ordinances should be used when evaluating the proposed special use permit. These criteria are 
listed below, along with Staff’s analysis of each one. There are no specific Special Use Permit 
requirements for changing message signs in the ordinance currently.  
 
1. The project is consistent with the intent and purposes of this Chapter. 
 

The use of this type of sign is consistent with the intent of the sign ordinance. The ordinance is 
explicitly allows changing message signs in commercial districts. The Marketplace property is a 
commercial zoned property and the Municipal Building is in a commercial area and functions as 
a non-residential use. Additionally, Staff is proposing changes to the ordinance that would allow 
the Municipal Building sign by right, as outlined later in this report.  
 

2. The project is consistent with applicable land use policies contained in the Township’s 
comprehensive development plan of current adoption. 

 
The project is consistent with the fifth goal of the Master Plan ‘Maintain Essential Public 
Services’ in that it allows the Township clear and reliable communication with the general 
public. 

 
3. The project is designed, constructed, operated, and maintained so as to be harmonious and 

appropriate in appearance with the existing or intended character of the general vicinity and that 
such a use will not change the essential character of the same area.   

 
The sign refresh around the township will be appropriate in appearance and will be in keeping 
with the general character of the area. Specific to the changing message signs under review in 
this request, the changing message portion of the sign is less than 25% of the size of the overall 
sign, which is a reasonable request and not out of character with the signage that would be 
found in a commercial district.  

 
4. The project will not adversely affect or be hazardous to existing neighboring uses. 
 

The signage will not adversely affect or be hazardous to the surrounding uses.  
 



 
SUP #22-061 – Meridian Township Signage          Planning Commission – May 23, 2022 
Page 3 

 
  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

 

5. The project will not be detrimental to the economic welfare of surrounding properties or the 
community. 

 
The signage will not have a negative economic impact on the surrounding properties, as they 
are commercial in nature and could potentially ask for signage similar to the changing message 
sign under review.  

 
6. The project is adequately served by public facilities, such as existing roads, schools, stormwater 

drainage, public safety, public transportation, and public recreation, or that the persons or 
agencies responsible for the establishment of the proposed use shall be able to provide any such 
service. 

 
No utilities other than electricity are needed for the request and that is availability at each site.  

 
7. The project is adequately served by public sanitation facilities if so designed.  If on-site sanitation 

facilities for sewage disposal, potable water supply, and stormwater are proposed, they shall be 
properly designed and capable of handling the long-term needs of the proposed project. 
 
Sanitary facilities are not needed for the proposed activity.  

 
8. The project will not involve uses, activities, processes, materials, and equipment and conditions of 

operation that will be detrimental to any persons, property, or the general welfare by reason of 
excessive production of traffic, noise, smoke, fumes, glare, or odors. 

 
The use of the sign as a changing message sign will not create any traffic, noise, smoke, fumes, 
glare, or odors.  

 
9. The project will not directly or indirectly have a substantial adverse impact on the natural 

resources of the Township, including, but not limited to, prime agricultural soils, water recharge 
areas, lakes, rivers, streams, major forests, wetlands, and wildlife areas. 

 
The signs will not have any impact on the natural resources of the Township.  

 
Sign Ordinance Changes 
 
As part of the forthcoming sign ordinance update, Staff is recommending that the standards for 
changing message signs be modified. Additionally, we are recommending an exemption for any 
municipal signage. As can be seen with this application, the needs of municipal signage are much 
different than the needs from a traditional commercial tenant. Additionally, the majority of Township 
owned facilities are actually zoned residential, despite their use, which will cause issues with the sign 
refresh project and severely limit the Township’s ability to communicate with the public.  
 
The proposed ordinance to exempt municipal signage will be presented to the Planning Commission 
at the next meeting. For the purposes of the current review, there are no specific standards for 
changing message signs in the ordinance, other than “Such signs shall no flash, travel, or move in any 
way.” Staff would recommend this as a condition of any approval for a changing message sign at this 



 
SUP #22-061 – Meridian Township Signage          Planning Commission – May 23, 2022 
Page 4 

 
  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

 

time. In the specific case at hand, Staff will also recommend that a condition of approval be included 
that requires an ordinance change to allow a changing message sign on a residentially zoned property 
that is used for non-residential purposes. Lastly, in the past, the Township has severely limited the 
number of times the sign’s message is permitted to change on a daily basis. Staff would also 
recommend a condition of approval to restrict the message change, consistent with past practice in 
the community.  
 
Planning Commission Options 
 
The Planning Commission may approve, approve with conditions, or deny the proposed special use 
permit.  A draft resolution to approve the request with conditions is attached for the Planning 
Commission’s review. Staff will bring this matter back to the Planning Commission at the next 
regularly scheduled meeting with any additional information/clarifications that are needed.  
 
Attachments 
1. Draft resolution to approve with conditions 
2. Special Use Permit application and supporting documents 
 
 



RESOLUTION TO APPROVE Special Use Permit #22-061 
  Municipal Signage – Changing Message 
  

RESOLUTION 
 

At the regular meeting of the Planning Commission of the Charter Township of Meridian, 
Ingham County, Michigan, held at the Meridian Municipal Building, in said Township on the 23rd day 
of May, 2022, at 7:00 p.m., Local Time. 
 
PRESENT: ________________________________________________________________________________________                     
                                                                                                          
ABSENT: ________________________________________________________________________________________                      
 
 The following resolution was offered by __________________ and supported by                                             
_______________________. 
 
 WHEREAS, Township Staff have been working on a sign refresh for the Township’s signage for 
seven years; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Township’s brand standards have changed substantially in the past several 
years; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Township’s sign design consultant has recommended approximately 25% of the 
sign area at the Municipal Building and the Marketplace on the Green be a changing message sign, to 
convey additional information to the general public; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a public hearing for Special Use Permit #22-061 at 
its meeting on May 23, 2022 and has reviewed the staff material forwarded under cover memorandum 
dated May 19, 2022; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the requested amendment is consistent with the general standards for granting a 
special use permit found in Section 86-126 of the Code of Ordinances; and 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CHARTER 
TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN hereby approves Special Use Permit #22-061 subject to the following 
conditions: 
 

1. The changing message portion of the final design of the sign shall not exceed 25% of the 
total sign area.  

 
2. The message on the sign shall change no more than twice a day.  

 
3. The applicant shall obtain any and all other applicable permits, licenses, and approvals 

necessary to install the signs. Copies of all permits, licenses, and approvals shall be 
submitted to the Department of Community Planning and Development. 

 
4. Neither sign shall flash, travel, or move in any way. 
 



Resolution to Approve                 SUP #22-061 – Municipal Changing Message Signs 
Page 2 
 

5. Due to the zoning of the Municipal Building property and a desire to not rezone the 
property, the Township’s sign ordinance shall be updated to allow a changing message 
sign at that location, prior to installation.  

 
6. Any changes to the signs that modify the changing message portion of the sign shall 

require Planning Commission review and approval, regardless of future ordinance 
changes.  

 
ADOPTED: YEAS: __________________________________________________________________________________                                      
                                                                                             
  NAYS: ________________________________________________________________________________                   
 
STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
    ) ss 
COUNTY OF INGHAM ) 
  
 I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Chairperson of the Planning Commission of 
the Charter Township of Meridian, Ingham County, Michigan, DO HEREBY CERTIFY the foregoing is a 
true and complete copy of a resolution adopted at a regular meeting of the Planning Commission on the 
23rd day of May, 2022. 
 
 
       ______________________________   
       Mark Blumer, Chair 
       Meridian Township Planning Commission  
 
 
 













06.02.21         Submission
07.12.21         Revision
04.01.22	      Revision

(Horizontal with
hidden fasteners)

This drawing is design-intent only.
Fabricator is responsible for fabrication
and overall level of quality. Any changes
in design, materials, fabrication method
or other details must be approved by
Corbin Design or the Owner.

COLOR CODE

GRAPHICS
STANDARDS

NOTES

SCALE: 3/8"-1'

DATE DESCRIPTION

415 S Union, Second Floor
Traverse City, MI 49684

(231) 947-1236

Fabricator is responsible for matching all 
colors and materials as specified and are 
required to provide the Owner color and 
material samples for approval.

CAUTION! 
CONSISTENT AND ACCURATE COLOR 
REPRODUCTION IN THIS DOCUMENT 
CANNOT
BE ASSURED DUE TO THE LIMITATIONS 
OF
COLOR COPYING TECHNOLOGY.

The Coated Pantone Matching System® 
and Matthews Acrylic Polyurethatue are 
used for specifying signage color matches. 
(In the absence of actual sign material 
color chip reference sets, actual specified 
product color swatches should be 
referenced for color matching.)

Off White

---

---

---

---

---

MP00015 Polar White

---

RAL 9003 Signal White

6

Off White6

White

Neutral Black U

---

---

---

5

White5

Black4

Black4

PMS 2945C

---

---

---

PMS 377C

---

---

---

Pantone®:

Matthews Paint:

Vinyl:

Powdercoating:

1 Navy

1 Navy

2 Green

2 Green

PMS 166C

---

---

---

3 Orange

3 Orange

8

---

MP00015 Polar White

---

RAL 9003 Signal White

Corrugated Metal

8 Corrugated Metal

9

n/a

n/a

n/a

Culture Stone - Melrose or approved alternate

Stone Veneer 

Sample Corrugated Metal Panel
(or approved alternate) 

Corrugated Metals Inc.
www.corrugated-metals.com 

Style: Harvest Panel

9 Stone

Pantone®:

Matthews Paint:

Vinyl:

Powdercoating:

Symbols Artwork

Aa Bb Cc Dd Ee Ff Gg Hh Ii Jj Kk Ll Mm Nn Oo Pp Qq Rr Ss Tt Uu Vv Ww Xx Yy Zz 1234567890
Nexa Bold - Regular

Aa Bb Cc Dd Ee Ff Gg Hh Ii Jj Kk Ll Mm Nn Oo Pp Qq Rr Ss Tt Uu Vv Ww Xx Yy Zz 1234567890
Cambria Bold Italic

Standard Arrow

Parking

Typography

Color Palette

PMS 2905C

---

---

---

Light Blue7

Light Blue7

Shown here are approximations of 
the primary signage background 
colors and supporting accent 
colors. Actual color finishes on 
signage must be satin or low luster 
(not shiny or glossy) and 
exclusively a premium acrylic 
polyurethane. 

Signage paints produced by 
Matthews Paint  Company are to 
be the standard reference.

Vinyl Films from 3M are to be the 
standard.

Color application varies per sign 
type. Refer to specific design 
intent drawings for application 
details.

IX-2A
MUNICIPAL CAMPUS
IDENTIFICATION
WITH MESSAGE BOARD

Municipal Complex
5151 Marsh Road

Historical Village

Front View Side View

Alternate Base Detail

FABRICATOR TO PROVIDE
ENGINEERED SHOP DRAWINGS
FOR ENGINEER/OWNER REVIEW

AND ACCEPTANCE.

DOUBLE-SIDED SIGN FACE

This drawing is design-intent only.
Fabricator is responsible for fabrication
and overall level of quality. Any changes
in design, materials, fabrication method
or other details must be approved by
Corbin Design or the Owner.

COLOR CODE

NOTES

SCALE: 3/8"-1'

DATE DESCRIPTION

415 S Union, Second Floor
Traverse City, MI 49684

(231) 947-1236

9

1

6

8

1

Square aluminum beam.

Fabricated aluminum bracket.

Remove planter base for 
Marketplace on the Green location.

1 Square aluminum post.

Digital message board. 8mm or 10mm full 
color LED screen. Daktronics OR Watchfire are 
the standards. Wireless connection and control 
software required.  

Dry stacked stone veneer.

9 Planting bed with dry 
stacked stone veneer. 

Dimensional aluminum 
letters.

Power supply. 

LED down lighting fixtures to 
illuminate the city logo.

ELECTRONIC
MESSAGE BOARD

SEE LOGO DETAILS SHEET

ELECTRONIC
MESSAGE BOARD

Fabricated aluminum cabinet with 
aluminum Corrugated metal 
cladding (Horizontal lines with with 
hidden fasteners).

Alternate Layout

ELECTRONIC
MESSAGE BOARD

1995 Central Park Drive

Marketplace on the Green
1995 Central Park Drive

Marketplace on the Green

1'-2 5/8"

1'-2 5/8"6 3/8"

11'-11"

4'-10"

10"

5'-6"

2'-3"

9"

7 1/4"

4 3/4"
3 1/4"

2'-6"

7 1/4"

5 3/4"

14'-10 3/8"
5 3/4"

7 1/4" 4" 7 1/4"

3 5/8"

10'-2 1/2"

8'-7 1/2"

19'-8"

2'-7 3/4" 8'-10"

7 1/4"7 1/4"7 1/4"

2'-5"

5"

2'-2"

8"

9'-0"

1'-6"

5 1/2"

3 1/4"
3 1/4"

5 1/2"

5 1/2"







 

 

 

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 

 

To:  Planning Commission  
 
From:  Timothy R. Schmitt, AICP 
  Community Planning and Development Director 
 
Date:  June 8, 2022 
 
Re: Planning Commission Bylaws 
 
The Planning Commission recently asked for Staff to bring forward the Planning Commission bylaws 
for discussion and potential amendment. This initially came up in discussion of taking action on 
items the same evening that they are introduced to the Planning Commission. However, Staff would 
point out that regular review of bylaws is important for any organization. 
 
The currently adopted bylaws are attached for your review. The Planning Commission has complete 
control over their own bylaws, but in reviewing the matter, Staff would offer the following 
recommendations for amendments: 

- Subsection 3.D. on page 3 – This should be struck from the bylaws. Neither of the items listed 
there are referenced in the Township’s Code of Ordinances.  

- Subsection 5.8.c. on page 5 – Staff does not believe this is necessary and we have already had 
two meetings this year that have had more than three public hearings. This item can be 
struck and can be dealt with internally between the Chairperson and Staff.  

- Subsection 6.4 on page 9 – Subheading a is the requirement that has to be waived by the 
Planning Commission in order to act upon an item the same night as the public hearing. Staff 
would recommend deleting this from the bylaws, as the Planning Commission should have 
the ability to act upon any item, if there are no questions about the proposal.  

- Section 7 on page 9 – This section is recreating ordinance requirements and Staff would 
recommend removing them from the bylaws, to ensure that the zoning ordinance is the only 
document someone needs to refer to in an appeal procedure.  

 
There are a number of other areas where we could streamline the bylaws, should the Planning 
Commission choose to want to make additional changes, but Staff has not included those proposals 
at this time.  
 
Staff has attached a copy of the currently adopted bylaws and a redlined copy, with the Staff changes 
recommended above. We look forward to discussing this matter with the Planning Commission at 
their next meeting.  
 
Attachment 
1. Currently adopted Planning Commission Bylaws 
2. Redlined version of the Planning Commission Bylaws 
 
 
 



 
 1 

 Adopted: June 14, 2017 

  

 

 

 

MERIDIAN TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION 

BYLAWS 

June 14, 2017 UPDATE 

 

These bylaws of the Planning Commission of the Charter Township of Meridian, Ingham County, 

Michigan, are adopted in accordance with the Michigan Planning Enabling Act (Act 33 of 2008 as 

amended), which states, "a planning commission shall adopt bylaws for the transaction of business 

and shall keep a public record of its resolutions, transactions, findings and determinations.” 

 

1.  AUTHORIZATION 

 

 The Planning Commission, hereinafter called the Commission, is established pursuant to the 

Michigan Planning Enabling Act (Act 33 of 2008 as amended), and the Meridian Charter 

Township Code of Ordinances, (Chapter 2, Article VI, Division 5). 

 

2.  OFFICERS & COMMISSIONERS 

 

 2.1 Selection.  At the first regular meeting in January, the Commission shall select 

from its members a chair, vice-chair, and secretary. 

 

 2.2 Terms.  Term of office shall commence from the date of selection for a period of 

one year, or until a successor has been selected.  Officers shall be eligible for re-

election, but shall not serve more than two successive full terms in an office. 

 

 2.3 Duties of Officers & Commissioners. 

 

  a. The chair shall preside at all meetings, appoint committees and liaisons to 

other groups with concurrence from the Commission, authorize calls for 

special meetings and perform such other duties as may be specified by the 

Commission. 

 

  b.  The vice-chair shall act in the capacity of the chair in the chair's absence. 

 

c. In the event the office of the chair becomes vacant, the vice-chair shall succeed 

to this office for the unexpired term and the Commission shall select a 

successor to the office of vice-chair for the unexpired term. 

 

d. The secretary shall perform those duties as assigned by the Michigan Planning 

Enabling Act (Act 33 of 2008 as amended), and such other duties as may be 

assigned from time to time by the Commission. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 2 

 Adopted: June 14, 2017 

e. Members of the Commission who are absent from more than three (3) 

consecutive, regularly scheduled Commission meetings and work sessions or 

more than thirty (30) percent of the regularly scheduled Commission 

meetings and work sessions in a calendar year shall be subject to review and 

possible recommendation for removal to the Township Board.  Exceptions 

may be made if absences are due to the conduct of other business as 

authorized by the Commission. 

 

f. Members shall comply with the definition of “conflict of interest” found in 

Section 2-287(d) of the Code of Ordinances.  Members who have a conflict of 

interest shall not vote or participate in any consideration of that matter, such 

action to be recorded in the meeting record.  Failure of a member to disclose 

a potential conflict constitutes malfeasance in office. 

 

3.    RESPONSIBILITIES AND AUTHORITY 

 

 The Commission shall assume the following responsibilities and authority pursuant to: 

 

A. The Michigan Planning Enabling Act (Act 33 of 2008 as amended) 

1. Prepare, adopt, or amend a master plan for the Township, including 

recommendations for development.  Examples of activities to accomplish this 

responsibility include: 

 

a. Preparation of planning reports and plans (prior to publication). 

 

b. Preparation of preliminary plans and reports for the physical 

development of the Township, including: a land use plan and program and 

the general location, character, and extent of streets, roads, highways, 

bicycle paths, pedestrian ways, railroads, bridges, waterways and 

waterfront developments; flood retention works, drainage, sanitary 

sewers and water supply system; works for preventing pollution and 

works for maintaining water levels; and public utilities and structures. 

 

c. Recommendations as to the general character, extent and layout for the 

redevelopment or rehabilitation of blighted areas. 

 

d. Evaluate and prepare recommendations related to the administration and 

enforcement of the subdivision of land.  

 

2. Conduct studies and surveys related to Township planning and development. 

 

3. Review for character, location, and extent and recommend approval or 

disapproval of public improvements, prior to construction or authorization 

for construction of a street, square, park, playground, public way, ground, or 

other open space, or public building or other building. 

 

4. Promote public education and citizen participation in the Township master 

plan. 

 

 

 



 
 3 

 Adopted: June 14, 2017 

B. The Land Division Act (Act 288 of 1967 as amended) 

 

1. Recommend approval, modification or disapproval of plats in accordance with 

Chapter 62 of the Meridian Township Code of Ordinances.  

 

C. The Michigan Zoning Enabling Act (Act 110 of 2006 as amended) 

 

1. Hear and decide special use permits.  

 

2. Formulate and recommend ordinances, including their amendments or 

revisions. 

 

3. Evaluate and prepare recommendations related to the administration and 

enforcement of the zoning ordinance. 

 

D. The Meridian Charter Township Code Of Ordinances, Chapter 2, Article VI, 

Division 5  

 

1. Recommend to the Township Board a member of the Commission to serve 

on the Zoning Board of Appeals. 

 

2. Make recommendations for the selection of consultants and 

determination of basis for compensation to the Township Board. 

 

4.  COMMITTEES 

 

 4.1 Purpose.  The Commission may establish committees and/or designate liaisons to 

other Township bodies necessary to assist it in fulfilling its responsibilities and 

goals. 

 

 4.2 Appointment.  Committee members or liaison members shall be appointed by the 

chair, with concurrence from the Commission. 

 

 4.3 Assignment of Duties.  The Commission shall define the purpose, functions, 

tenure, selection of the chair, meeting and reporting requirements for its 

committees.  A committee may be discharged from its responsibilities by the 

Commission. 

 

 4.4 Public Participation.  Committees shall meet requirements for public participation 

and access to records as provided for in 5.11 and 5.12 of these bylaws. 

 

5.  MEETINGS 

 

 5.1 Regular Meetings.  The Commission shall hold no fewer than four regular 

meetings each year.  In addition, work sessions may be scheduled for informal 

consideration of business, providing no official actions or decisions are taken at 

these sessions.  All meetings and work sessions shall comply with the provisions 

of the Freedom of Information Act. 

 

 

 



 
 4 

 Adopted: June 14, 2017 

 5.2 Special Meetings.  Special meetings may be called by the chair.  The chair shall call 

a special meeting at the written request of three or more members of the 

Commission.  Commission members shall be notified at least 48 hours prior to the 

meeting.  Notification may be by e-mail or telephone and shall include the purpose 

of the meeting.  Public notice of special meetings shall be in accordance with the 

Open Meetings Act (Act 267 of 1976 as amended). 

 

 5.3 Meeting Schedule.  A schedule of the Commission's regular meetings including 

date, time and place shall be established for each calendar year in accordance with 

the Open Meetings Act (Act 267 of 1976 as amended). Notice of such schedule, 

shall be available to the public no later than ten days after the first meeting of the 

Commission in each calendar year.  A change in the regular meeting schedule shall 

be posted within three days after the meeting at which the change is made. 

  

 5.4 Quorum.  A majority of members shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of 

business at meetings unless otherwise specified in these bylaws.  The chairperson 

may postpone or reschedule a meeting in the event a quorum will not be present 

upon proper notification in accordance with the Open Meetings Act (Act 267 of 

1976 as amended). 

 

 5.5 Resolutions and Motions.  All resolutions and motions of a substantive nature 

shall be made in writing.  The name of the originator and seconder, the findings of 

fact, and the rationale for action shall be recorded in the minutes. 

 

 5.6 Voting.  Voting shall be by voice except that a roll call vote will be taken and 

recorded for all decisions made by resolution, or when requested by a member of 

the Commission. 

 

 5.7 Decisions.  Providing a quorum is present, a simple majority of those present and 

voting shall be required for Commission action.  Exceptions shall include: 

 

  a. Adoption of the Master Plan, or any part thereof, including extensions, 

additions, revisions or other amendments all of which shall require the 

affirmative vote of at least six members. 

 

   b. Any other action which by law, Township ordinance or parliamentary 

authority requires otherwise. 

 

 5.8 Agenda.         

 

  a. An agenda shall be established for each meeting of the Commission by 

designated Township staff and the chair, and shall be made available to 

Commission members and the public in advance of the meeting. The chair 

shall determine the order of business, unless otherwise amended by the 

Commission.  

 

  b. Agenda items to be considered at a special meeting shall be limited to 

those included in the call to meeting, unless all members are present and 

vote otherwise. 

 



 
 5 

 Adopted: June 14, 2017 

  c. No more than three public hearings may be scheduled for a regular 

meeting of the Commission.  The chair may approve exceptions when this 

bylaw would cause substantial backlog in Commission business.   

 

  d. A typical agenda may include: 

 

   1. Call to order 

 

  2. Public Remarks 

 

  3. Approval of agenda 

 

  4. Approval of Minutes 

 

  5. Communications 

 

  6. Public Hearings 

 

  7. Unfinished Business 

  

  8. Other Business (as applicable) 

 

  9. Announcements 

 

  10. Public Remarks 

 

  11. Adjournment 

 

 5.9 Public Participation. 

 

  a. All regular and special meetings, work sessions, and committee meetings 

shall be open to the public subject to the provisions of the Open Meetings 

Act (Act 267, 1976 as amended). 

 

  b. Opportunity shall be provided for public comment at meetings in 

accordance with established Commission and Township policies and 

procedures, which include:   

 

1. The number of persons admitted to a meeting room will be in 

keeping with public safety requirements and availability of space.  

Efforts will be made to provide adequate room to accommodate 

those in attendance. 

 

2. Established protocols for public participation will be announced at 

the beginning of the meeting. 

 

 3. Opportunity to speak will be granted either under Public Remarks, 

or during a public hearing, as most appropriate. 

 

4. Members of the public wishing to speak must first fill out and 

hand in a request form. 



 
 6 

 Adopted: June 14, 2017 

5. Members of the public will identify themselves by name and 

address prior to presenting their comments. 

 

6. A member of the public will be provided no less than three 

minutes to speak.  Reasonable time limits may be imposed to 

insure everyone desiring to speak has an opportunity to speak.  

 

7. All written communications will become part of the Commission 

record. 

 

8. The chair may invite members of the public to participate in 

informal discussion on all or selected agenda items during 

Commission work sessions. 

 

 c. The chair may call to order any person who disrupts the orderly conduct 

of a meeting and prohibit such person from further participation or 

attendance at such meeting.   

 

 5.10 Records.  Designated Township staff shall be responsible for minutes and other 

official records of all Commission meetings and actions, including supporting 

documentation.  Notice of meetings, minutes and records shall be available to the 

public in accordance with the Freedom of Information Act (Act 442 of 1976 as 

amended). 

 

 5.11 Reporting Requirements.  The Commission shall provide for timely transmission 

of such reports or recommendations as are required by State law, Township 

ordinance or Board policy.  Examples of reporting requirements include: 

 

 a. Planning.   

 

 1. The secretary of the Commission shall prepare and distribute a 

notice the Commission intends to prepare a Master Plan and 

requesting cooperation and comment to:  

 

 a. Each municipality contiguous to Meridian Township. 

 

 b. Tri-County Regional Planning Commission 

 

 c. Ingham County Board of Commissioners. 

 

 d. Each public utility company and railroad company owning 

or operating a public utility or railroad within Meridian 

Township that registers its name and mailing address for 

this purpose with the Commission. 

 

 e. Any government agency that registers its name and mailing 

address for this purpose with the Commission. 

 

 f. Ingham County Road Department and Michigan 

Department of Transportation. 

 



 
 7 

 Adopted: June 14, 2017 

 2. The secretary of the Commission shall distribute the completed 

Master Plan draft after receiving Township Board authorization to 

the following: 

 

 a. Each municipality contiguous to Meridian Township. 

 

 b. Tri-County Regional Planning Commission. 

 

 c. Ingham County Board of Commissioners including a 

statement signed by the secretary of the Commission that 

each municipality contiguous to Meridian Township and 

the Tri-County Regional Planning Commission were 

notified of the intent to prepare a Master Plan. 

 

 d. Each public utility company and railroad company owning 

or operating a public utility or railroad within Meridian 

Township which has registered its name and address; and 

reimburses Meridian Township for copying and mailing 

costs.   

 

 e. Any government agency which has registered its name and 

mailing address with the secretary of the Commission and 

reimburses Meridian Township for copying and mailing costs. 

 

 f. Ingham County Road Department and Michigan Department of 

Transportation. 

 

  3. The secretary of the Commission shall distribute a copy of the adopted 

Master Plan to each entity which received a copy of the draft Master 

Plan. 

 

  b. Zoning.  Following the hearing on a proposed Zoning Ordinance, or its 

amendment, the Commission shall submit any comments received at the 

hearing and its proposed zoning ordinance including any maps and 

recommendations to the Township Board for final action thereon, as specified 

in the Michigan Zoning Enabling Act (Act 110 of 2006 as amended) and 

Chapter 86 of the Township Code of Ordinances.   

 

 c. Annual Report.  The Commission shall make an annual written report 

concerning its operations and the status of planning activities, including 

recommendations regarding actions by the Township Board related to 

planning and development; and on the administration and enforcement of the 

zoning ordinance and recommendations for amendments or supplements to 

the ordinance.  The secretary of the Commission shall transmit the report to 

the Township Board.   

 

 5.12 Limit on Introduction of Agenda Items. Agenda items shall not be introduced for 

discussion or a Public hearing opened after 10:00 p.m. The chair may approve 

exceptions when this bylaw would cause substantial backlog in Commission business. 

 

 



 
 8 

 Adopted: June 14, 2017 

6.  PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 

 6.1 Purpose. 

 

  a. Public hearings shall be held: 

 

   1. Prior to the adoption of any part of the master plan or any 

extension, addition, revision or other amendment thereof. 

 

   2. Prior to making a recommendation to the Township Board of 

any amendment to the Township Zoning Ordinances or of 

other zoning requests. 

 

   3. For consideration of special use permits. 

 

   4. For other matters as required by statute or Township Zoning 

Ordinance. 

 

  b. Public hearings may also be held for informational purposes.  

Reasons for holding informational hearings include but not limited 

to: 

 

1. To seek citizen input on any appropriate subject. 

 

2. To educate the public on selected issues or proposed actions related to 

planning and development and enhance public understanding or 

acceptance. 

 

 6.2 Notice.   

 

  a. Notice of public hearings, including time, place, and purpose shall be made in 

conformance with applicable statutes and ordinances.  Examples of noticing 

requirements include: 

   

1. Planning.  The Michigan Planning Enabling Act (Act 33 of 2008 as 

amended) for adoption and amendment of a master plan. 

 

2. Zoning.  The Michigan Zoning Enabling Act (Act 110 of 2006 as 

amended) and Meridian Township Code of Ordinances, Chapter 86, 

for zoning map amendments, zoning ordinance amendments, special 

use permits, planned unit developments, and planned residential 

developments. 

 

3. Plats.  The Land Division Act (Act 288 of 1967 as amended) and 

Meridian Township Code of Ordinances, Chapter 62, for tentative 

preliminary, final preliminary, and final plats. 

   

  b. Other procedures as adopted by the Planning Commission or Township 

Board. 

 

 



 
 9 

 Adopted: June 14, 2017 

 6.3 Format.  Public hearings shall be part of regular Commission meetings and shall 

be conducted according to established written procedures.  An example of a 

typical public hearing format is:   

 

  a. Introduction by the chair (Open public hearing, announcement of 

procedures, time limits, and protocols for participation by the public, 

applicants, and their designated representatives). 

 

  b. Summary of subject matter. 

 

  c. Presentation by the petitioner (applicant) or designated representative(s). 

 

  d. Public comments. 

 

  e. Discussion and questioning by Commission members. 

 

  f. Close public hearing. 

 

 6.4 Decisions. 

 

  a. A decision on a special use permit, zoning request or ordinance will not be 

made on the date of the public hearing considering such item. 

 

  b. Written notice of a Commission decision will be sent to the parties directly 

concerned with the purpose of the hearing, including petitioners or 

originators of the request for the hearing. 

  

7. APPEALS 

 

7.1 Administrative Decisions.  A person aggrieved by the action of the Director of 

Community Planning and Development related to a minor amendment to a Special 

Use Permit originally approved by the Commission may appeal in writing to the 

Commission within ten (10) days after the date of such action. 

 

 a. The Commission shall hold a hearing on the appeal, following prior 

notification to the public. 

 

 b. Parties to the complaint shall confine their participation to the issues 

specified in the appeal. 

 

 c. The Commission shall notify the appellant in writing of its decision and 

rationale. 

 

7.2 Commission Decisions.  A person aggrieved by action of the commission related to 

special use permits may appeal such action in writing to the Township Board 

within ten (10) days after the date of such action. 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 10 

 Adopted: June 14, 2017 

8.  PARLIAMENTARY AUTHORITY 

 

Robert’s Rules of Order Newly Revised, shall generally govern all questions of procedure not 

otherwise provided for in these bylaws or by state or federal law, or Township ordinance or policy; 

EXCEPT, the Planning Commission shall not reconsider a decision without prior authorization from 

the Township Board.   

 

9.   AMENDMENT AND SUSPENSION OF BYLAWS 

 

 9.1 Amendment.  Bylaws not required by state or federal law or Township ordinance 

may be amended by a two-thirds vote of the Commission, provided fifteen days 

notice and an opportunity for comment is given to the public. 

 

 9.2 Suspension.  A bylaw may be suspended by a two-thirds vote of Commission 

members present and voting at a meeting, provided said action is in accordance 

with established state or federal law, Township ordinance and parliamentary 

authority. 

 



 
 1 

 Adopted: June 14, 2017 

  

 

 

 

MERIDIAN TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION 

BYLAWS 

June 14, 2017 UPDATE 

 

These bylaws of the Planning Commission of the Charter Township of Meridian, Ingham County, 

Michigan, are adopted in accordance with the Michigan Planning Enabling Act (Act 33 of 2008 as 

amended), which states, "a planning commission shall adopt bylaws for the transaction of business 

and shall keep a public record of its resolutions, transactions, findings and determinations.” 

 

1.  AUTHORIZATION 

 

 The Planning Commission, hereinafter called the Commission, is established pursuant to the 

Michigan Planning Enabling Act (Act 33 of 2008 as amended), and the Meridian Charter 

Township Code of Ordinances, (Chapter 2, Article VI, Division 5). 

 

2.  OFFICERS & COMMISSIONERS 

 

 2.1 Selection.  At the first regular meeting in January, the Commission shall select 

from its members a chair, vice-chair, and secretary. 

 

 2.2 Terms.  Term of office shall commence from the date of selection for a period of 

one year, or until a successor has been selected.  Officers shall be eligible for re-

election, but shall not serve more than two successive full terms in an office. 

 

 2.3 Duties of Officers & Commissioners. 

 

  a. The chair shall preside at all meetings, appoint committees and liaisons to 

other groups with concurrence from the Commission, authorize calls for 

special meetings and perform such other duties as may be specified by the 

Commission. 

 

  b.  The vice-chair shall act in the capacity of the chair in the chair's absence. 

 

c. In the event the office of the chair becomes vacant, the vice-chair shall succeed 

to this office for the unexpired term and the Commission shall select a 

successor to the office of vice-chair for the unexpired term. 

 

d. The secretary shall perform those duties as assigned by the Michigan Planning 

Enabling Act (Act 33 of 2008 as amended), and such other duties as may be 

assigned from time to time by the Commission. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 2 

 Adopted: June 14, 2017 

e. Members of the Commission who are absent from more than three (3) 

consecutive, regularly scheduled Commission meetings and work sessions or 

more than thirty (30) percent of the regularly scheduled Commission 

meetings and work sessions in a calendar year shall be subject to review and 

possible recommendation for removal to the Township Board.  Exceptions 

may be made if absences are due to the conduct of other business as 

authorized by the Commission. 

 

f. Members shall comply with the definition of “conflict of interest” found in 

Section 2-287(d) of the Code of Ordinances.  Members who have a conflict of 

interest shall not vote or participate in any consideration of that matter, such 

action to be recorded in the meeting record.  Failure of a member to disclose 

a potential conflict constitutes malfeasance in office. 

 

3.    RESPONSIBILITIES AND AUTHORITY 

 

 The Commission shall assume the following responsibilities and authority pursuant to: 

 

A. The Michigan Planning Enabling Act (Act 33 of 2008 as amended) 

1. Prepare, adopt, or amend a master plan for the Township, including 

recommendations for development.  Examples of activities to accomplish this 

responsibility include: 

 

a. Preparation of planning reports and plans (prior to publication). 

 

b. Preparation of preliminary plans and reports for the physical 

development of the Township, including: a land use plan and program and 

the general location, character, and extent of streets, roads, highways, 

bicycle paths, pedestrian ways, railroads, bridges, waterways and 

waterfront developments; flood retention works, drainage, sanitary 

sewers and water supply system; works for preventing pollution and 

works for maintaining water levels; and public utilities and structures. 

 

c. Recommendations as to the general character, extent and layout for the 

redevelopment or rehabilitation of blighted areas. 

 

d. Evaluate and prepare recommendations related to the administration and 

enforcement of the subdivision of land.  

 

2. Conduct studies and surveys related to Township planning and development. 

 

3. Review for character, location, and extent and recommend approval or 

disapproval of public improvements, prior to construction or authorization 

for construction of a street, square, park, playground, public way, ground, or 

other open space, or public building or other building. 

 

4. Promote public education and citizen participation in the Township master 

plan. 

 

 

 



 
 3 

 Adopted: June 14, 2017 

B. The Land Division Act (Act 288 of 1967 as amended) 

 

1. Recommend approval, modification or disapproval of plats in accordance with 

Chapter 62 of the Meridian Township Code of Ordinances.  

 

C. The Michigan Zoning Enabling Act (Act 110 of 2006 as amended) 

 

1. Hear and decide special use permits.  

 

2. Formulate and recommend ordinances, including their amendments or 

revisions. 

 

3. Evaluate and prepare recommendations related to the administration and 

enforcement of the zoning ordinance. 

 

D. The Meridian Charter Township Code Of Ordinances, Chapter 2, Article VI, 

Division 5  

 

1. Recommend to the Township Board a member of the Commission to serve 

on the Zoning Board of Appeals. 

 

2. Make recommendations for the selection of consultants and 

determination of basis for compensation to the Township Board. 

 

4.  COMMITTEES 

 

 4.1 Purpose.  The Commission may establish committees and/or designate liaisons to 

other Township bodies necessary to assist it in fulfilling its responsibilities and 

goals. 

 

 4.2 Appointment.  Committee members or liaison members shall be appointed by the 

chair, with concurrence from the Commission. 

 

 4.3 Assignment of Duties.  The Commission shall define the purpose, functions, 

tenure, selection of the chair, meeting and reporting requirements for its 

committees.  A committee may be discharged from its responsibilities by the 

Commission. 

 

 4.4 Public Participation.  Committees shall meet requirements for public participation 

and access to records as provided for in 5.11 and 5.12 of these bylaws. 

 

5.  MEETINGS 

 

 5.1 Regular Meetings.  The Commission shall hold no fewer than four regular 

meetings each year.  In addition, work sessions may be scheduled for informal 

consideration of business, providing no official actions or decisions are taken at 

these sessions.  All meetings and work sessions shall comply with the provisions 

of the Freedom of Information Act. 

 

 

 

schmitt
Cross-Out



 
 4 

 Adopted: June 14, 2017 

 5.2 Special Meetings.  Special meetings may be called by the chair.  The chair shall call 

a special meeting at the written request of three or more members of the 

Commission.  Commission members shall be notified at least 48 hours prior to the 

meeting.  Notification may be by e-mail or telephone and shall include the purpose 

of the meeting.  Public notice of special meetings shall be in accordance with the 

Open Meetings Act (Act 267 of 1976 as amended). 

 

 5.3 Meeting Schedule.  A schedule of the Commission's regular meetings including 

date, time and place shall be established for each calendar year in accordance with 

the Open Meetings Act (Act 267 of 1976 as amended). Notice of such schedule, 

shall be available to the public no later than ten days after the first meeting of the 

Commission in each calendar year.  A change in the regular meeting schedule shall 

be posted within three days after the meeting at which the change is made. 

  

 5.4 Quorum.  A majority of members shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of 

business at meetings unless otherwise specified in these bylaws.  The chairperson 

may postpone or reschedule a meeting in the event a quorum will not be present 

upon proper notification in accordance with the Open Meetings Act (Act 267 of 

1976 as amended). 

 

 5.5 Resolutions and Motions.  All resolutions and motions of a substantive nature 

shall be made in writing.  The name of the originator and seconder, the findings of 

fact, and the rationale for action shall be recorded in the minutes. 

 

 5.6 Voting.  Voting shall be by voice except that a roll call vote will be taken and 

recorded for all decisions made by resolution, or when requested by a member of 

the Commission. 

 

 5.7 Decisions.  Providing a quorum is present, a simple majority of those present and 

voting shall be required for Commission action.  Exceptions shall include: 

 

  a. Adoption of the Master Plan, or any part thereof, including extensions, 

additions, revisions or other amendments all of which shall require the 

affirmative vote of at least six members. 

 

   b. Any other action which by law, Township ordinance or parliamentary 

authority requires otherwise. 

 

 5.8 Agenda.         

 

  a. An agenda shall be established for each meeting of the Commission by 

designated Township staff and the chair, and shall be made available to 

Commission members and the public in advance of the meeting. The chair 

shall determine the order of business, unless otherwise amended by the 

Commission.  

 

  b. Agenda items to be considered at a special meeting shall be limited to 

those included in the call to meeting, unless all members are present and 

vote otherwise. 

 



5 

Adopted: June 14, 2017 

c. No more than three public hearings may be scheduled for a regular

meeting of the Commission.  The chair may approve exceptions when this

bylaw would cause substantial backlog in Commission business.

d. A typical agenda may include:

1. Call to order

2. Public Remarks

3. Approval of agenda

4. Approval of Minutes

5. Communications

6. Public Hearings

7. Unfinished Business

8. Other Business (as applicable)

9. Announcements

10. Public Remarks

11. Adjournment

5.9 Public Participation. 

a. All regular and special meetings, work sessions, and committee meetings

shall be open to the public subject to the provisions of the Open Meetings

Act (Act 267, 1976 as amended).

b. Opportunity shall be provided for public comment at meetings in

accordance with established Commission and Township policies and

procedures, which include:

1. The number of persons admitted to a meeting room will be in

keeping with public safety requirements and availability of space.

Efforts will be made to provide adequate room to accommodate

those in attendance.

2. Established protocols for public participation will be announced at

the beginning of the meeting.

3. Opportunity to speak will be granted either under Public Remarks,

or during a public hearing, as most appropriate.

4. Members of the public wishing to speak must first fill out and

hand in a request form.

schmitt
Cross-Out



 
 6 

 Adopted: June 14, 2017 

5. Members of the public will identify themselves by name and 

address prior to presenting their comments. 

 

6. A member of the public will be provided no less than three 

minutes to speak.  Reasonable time limits may be imposed to 

insure everyone desiring to speak has an opportunity to speak.  

 

7. All written communications will become part of the Commission 

record. 

 

8. The chair may invite members of the public to participate in 

informal discussion on all or selected agenda items during 

Commission work sessions. 

 

 c. The chair may call to order any person who disrupts the orderly conduct 

of a meeting and prohibit such person from further participation or 

attendance at such meeting.   

 

 5.10 Records.  Designated Township staff shall be responsible for minutes and other 

official records of all Commission meetings and actions, including supporting 

documentation.  Notice of meetings, minutes and records shall be available to the 

public in accordance with the Freedom of Information Act (Act 442 of 1976 as 

amended). 

 

 5.11 Reporting Requirements.  The Commission shall provide for timely transmission 

of such reports or recommendations as are required by State law, Township 

ordinance or Board policy.  Examples of reporting requirements include: 

 

 a. Planning.   

 

 1. The secretary of the Commission shall prepare and distribute a 

notice the Commission intends to prepare a Master Plan and 

requesting cooperation and comment to:  

 

 a. Each municipality contiguous to Meridian Township. 

 

 b. Tri-County Regional Planning Commission 

 

 c. Ingham County Board of Commissioners. 

 

 d. Each public utility company and railroad company owning 

or operating a public utility or railroad within Meridian 

Township that registers its name and mailing address for 

this purpose with the Commission. 

 

 e. Any government agency that registers its name and mailing 

address for this purpose with the Commission. 

 

 f. Ingham County Road Department and Michigan 

Department of Transportation. 

 



 
 7 

 Adopted: June 14, 2017 

 2. The secretary of the Commission shall distribute the completed 

Master Plan draft after receiving Township Board authorization to 

the following: 

 

 a. Each municipality contiguous to Meridian Township. 

 

 b. Tri-County Regional Planning Commission. 

 

 c. Ingham County Board of Commissioners including a 

statement signed by the secretary of the Commission that 

each municipality contiguous to Meridian Township and 

the Tri-County Regional Planning Commission were 

notified of the intent to prepare a Master Plan. 

 

 d. Each public utility company and railroad company owning 

or operating a public utility or railroad within Meridian 

Township which has registered its name and address; and 

reimburses Meridian Township for copying and mailing 

costs.   

 

 e. Any government agency which has registered its name and 

mailing address with the secretary of the Commission and 

reimburses Meridian Township for copying and mailing costs. 

 

 f. Ingham County Road Department and Michigan Department of 

Transportation. 

 

  3. The secretary of the Commission shall distribute a copy of the adopted 

Master Plan to each entity which received a copy of the draft Master 

Plan. 

 

  b. Zoning.  Following the hearing on a proposed Zoning Ordinance, or its 

amendment, the Commission shall submit any comments received at the 

hearing and its proposed zoning ordinance including any maps and 

recommendations to the Township Board for final action thereon, as specified 

in the Michigan Zoning Enabling Act (Act 110 of 2006 as amended) and 

Chapter 86 of the Township Code of Ordinances.   

 

 c. Annual Report.  The Commission shall make an annual written report 

concerning its operations and the status of planning activities, including 

recommendations regarding actions by the Township Board related to 

planning and development; and on the administration and enforcement of the 

zoning ordinance and recommendations for amendments or supplements to 

the ordinance.  The secretary of the Commission shall transmit the report to 

the Township Board.   

 

 5.12 Limit on Introduction of Agenda Items. Agenda items shall not be introduced for 

discussion or a Public hearing opened after 10:00 p.m. The chair may approve 

exceptions when this bylaw would cause substantial backlog in Commission business. 

 

 



 
 8 

 Adopted: June 14, 2017 

6.  PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 

 6.1 Purpose. 

 

  a. Public hearings shall be held: 

 

   1. Prior to the adoption of any part of the master plan or any 

extension, addition, revision or other amendment thereof. 

 

   2. Prior to making a recommendation to the Township Board of 

any amendment to the Township Zoning Ordinances or of 

other zoning requests. 

 

   3. For consideration of special use permits. 

 

   4. For other matters as required by statute or Township Zoning 

Ordinance. 

 

  b. Public hearings may also be held for informational purposes.  

Reasons for holding informational hearings include but not limited 

to: 

 

1. To seek citizen input on any appropriate subject. 

 

2. To educate the public on selected issues or proposed actions related to 

planning and development and enhance public understanding or 

acceptance. 

 

 6.2 Notice.   

 

  a. Notice of public hearings, including time, place, and purpose shall be made in 

conformance with applicable statutes and ordinances.  Examples of noticing 

requirements include: 

   

1. Planning.  The Michigan Planning Enabling Act (Act 33 of 2008 as 

amended) for adoption and amendment of a master plan. 

 

2. Zoning.  The Michigan Zoning Enabling Act (Act 110 of 2006 as 

amended) and Meridian Township Code of Ordinances, Chapter 86, 

for zoning map amendments, zoning ordinance amendments, special 

use permits, planned unit developments, and planned residential 

developments. 

 

3. Plats.  The Land Division Act (Act 288 of 1967 as amended) and 

Meridian Township Code of Ordinances, Chapter 62, for tentative 

preliminary, final preliminary, and final plats. 

   

  b. Other procedures as adopted by the Planning Commission or Township 

Board. 

 

 



 
 9 

 Adopted: June 14, 2017 

 6.3 Format.  Public hearings shall be part of regular Commission meetings and shall 

be conducted according to established written procedures.  An example of a 

typical public hearing format is:   

 

  a. Introduction by the chair (Open public hearing, announcement of 

procedures, time limits, and protocols for participation by the public, 

applicants, and their designated representatives). 

 

  b. Summary of subject matter. 

 

  c. Presentation by the petitioner (applicant) or designated representative(s). 

 

  d. Public comments. 

 

  e. Discussion and questioning by Commission members. 

 

  f. Close public hearing. 

 

 6.4 Decisions. 

 

  a. A decision on a special use permit, zoning request or ordinance will not be 

made on the date of the public hearing considering such item. 

 

  b. Written notice of a Commission decision will be sent to the parties directly 

concerned with the purpose of the hearing, including petitioners or 

originators of the request for the hearing. 

  

7. APPEALS 

 

7.1 Administrative Decisions.  A person aggrieved by the action of the Director of 

Community Planning and Development related to a minor amendment to a Special 

Use Permit originally approved by the Commission may appeal in writing to the 

Commission within ten (10) days after the date of such action. 

 

 a. The Commission shall hold a hearing on the appeal, following prior 

notification to the public. 

 

 b. Parties to the complaint shall confine their participation to the issues 

specified in the appeal. 

 

 c. The Commission shall notify the appellant in writing of its decision and 

rationale. 

 

7.2 Commission Decisions.  A person aggrieved by action of the commission related to 

special use permits may appeal such action in writing to the Township Board 

within ten (10) days after the date of such action. 

 

 

 

 

 

schmitt
Cross-Out

schmitt
Cross-Out



 
 10 

 Adopted: June 14, 2017 

8.  PARLIAMENTARY AUTHORITY 

 

Robert’s Rules of Order Newly Revised, shall generally govern all questions of procedure not 

otherwise provided for in these bylaws or by state or federal law, or Township ordinance or policy; 

EXCEPT, the Planning Commission shall not reconsider a decision without prior authorization from 

the Township Board.   

 

9.   AMENDMENT AND SUSPENSION OF BYLAWS 

 

 9.1 Amendment.  Bylaws not required by state or federal law or Township ordinance 

may be amended by a two-thirds vote of the Commission, provided fifteen days 

notice and an opportunity for comment is given to the public. 

 

 9.2 Suspension.  A bylaw may be suspended by a two-thirds vote of Commission 

members present and voting at a meeting, provided said action is in accordance 

with established state or federal law, Township ordinance and parliamentary 

authority. 

 


	Hulett Road PUD Packet.pdf
	PUD 22-014 - Hulett.pc1
	Application
	Amended Submittal - 6-7-2022

	7B - Ordinance 2022-11 - Muni Signage.pdf
	1 - Municipal Signage Update PH Memo
	2 - PC Resolution to Approve TA 2022-11
	3 - Ordinance 2022-11 - Municipal Signage Ordinance CLEAN
	4 - Ordinance 2022-11 - Municipal Signage Ordinance REDLINE

	POD Ordinance Packet.pdf
	Temporary Container Memo to PC - 3
	PC Resolution to Approve TA 2022-12
	Temporary Container Ordinance REDLINE - 2
	Temporary Container Ordinance CLEAN - 2

	9A - SUP 22-061 - Meridian Signage.pdf
	SUP 22-061 - Muni Signage - PC Review
	SUP 22-061 res to approve

	9B - Bylaw Update 2022.pdf
	1 - 2022 Bylaw Update memo
	2 - Planning Commission Revised Bylaws Adopted June 14, 2017
	3 - Planning Commission adopted Bylaws Redlined




